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THe Stowe collection of MSS. was formed by the Marquess of
Buckingham at the beginning of the present century, and derives its
name from Stowe, his country seat, where it was kept. .

In 1804 were acquired the MSS. of Thomas Astle, Keeper of the
Records in the Tower, who by his will directed that they should be
offered to the Marquess of Buckingham. In the event of his refusal,
the British Museum would have had the option of purchase. Astle’s
MSS. comprised the Anglo-Saxon charters, the early English historical
MSS., the chartularies, the Hanover Papers and other state-papers
and correspondence, the heraldic and other collections of John Anstis,
Garter, etc., which now form so large a part of the Stowe library.

The next important addition was the collection of early Irish MSS.
which had belonged to Charles O'Conor, of Belanagare, whose grand-
son, Dr, Charles O'Conor, became the librarian at Stowe and drew up
the catalogue which was privately printed in 18181819,

Soon afterwards were purchased the papers of Arthur Capel, 1st
Earl of Essex, who served as Lord Lieutenant of Ireland in the reign
of Charles the Second. In this collection are included the Earls
correspondence and various papers connected with his office.

Among the miscellaneous additions made from time to time were:
the ancient Irish missal with a metal case, and some early volumes in
the Irish language ; the correspondence of Sir Thomas Edmondes,
ambassador in France and the Netherlands in the reigns of Elizabeth
and James I.; the correspondence of the Duke and Duchess of
Marlborough with Secretary Craggs in the reign of Queen Anne; and
other valuable historical papers.
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The Stowe MSS. amounted in all to 996 numbers.

In April, 1849, they were offered to the Trustees of the British
Museum, but the negotiations for the purchase failed; and the col-
lection was eventually sold to the late Earl of Ashburnham.

In 1879 the present Earl of Ashburnham offered the whole of
his library to the Trustees of the British Museum ; and early in the
present year negotiations for the purchase of his collections of MSS.
were re-opened. The purchase of the Stowe MSS., apart from Lord
Ashburnham’s other collections, was sanctioned by Parliament at the
close of last Session. By order of the Government, the collection has
been deposited in the British Museum, with the exception of the MSS.
in the Irish language and certain other volumes specially relating to
Ireland, which have been transferred to the library of the Royal Irish
Academy in Dublin.

The selection which is exhibited comprises some of the most
interesting charters, volumes, and historical and literary documents and
autographs.

E. Mauwspe THoMPSON,

Derr, oF MS5
19tk Novemmber, 1883.



EXHIBITION

OF A SELECTION FROM THE

STOWE MANUSCRIPTS.

CHARTERS,
(Table-case 1.)

1. Grant from Umrtrep, King of Kent, to the church of Liming
[Lyminge, co. Kent], of land of four ploughs called Wieghelmestun,®
within the boundaries of Bereueg, Meguinespaed, and Stretleg.
Witnessed by Berichtuald, Archbishop, Queen Aedilburg, and others
[a.D. 697] Latin.

In nomine domini dei nostri Tesu Christi Ego Uihtredus rex Cantuatiorum
prouidens mihi in futuro decreui dare aliquid omnia mihi donanti et consilio
accepto bonum uisum est . conferre bassilicae beatae Mariae genitricis dei quae
sita est in loco qui dicitur Limingae terram . iiii. aratrorum quae dicitur Wieg-
hel ,tun. cum ibus ad eandem terram pertinentibus iuxta notissimos
terminos id est Bereueg, et Mcguines paed et Stretleg . quam donationem meam
wolo firmam esse inperpetuum ut nec cgo seu heredes mei aliquid minuere
praesumant. Cuod si aliter temptatum fuerit 4 qualibet persona sub anathe-
matis interdictione sciat sé icari ad cuius confirmationem pro ignorantia
litterarum + signum sanctae crucis expressi et testes idoneos ut subscriberent
rogaui id est Berichtualdum archiepiscopum virum bil

+ Ego Berichtualdus episcopus rogatus i et subscribsi 4

+ Signum manus Uihtredi regis

® Originally written in the charter Pleghelmestun, the F/ having been partially
erased and altered to H% See a copy in Cotton MS., Augustus IL 88,
B
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+ Signum manus Aedilburgae regina
+ Signum manus Enfridi.

+ Signum manus Aedilfridi.

+ Signum manus Hagana,

+ Signum manus Botta.

4 Signum manus Bernhaerdi,

+ Signum manus Theabul.

+ Signum manus Frodi

+ Signum manus Achcha

+ Signum manus Aessica

+ Signum manus Adda.

+ Signum manus Egisberichti
Actum in mense Iulio indictione , xma,

2. Grant from Orra, King of Mercia, to the thane Ealdbeorht and
Selethryth his sister, of land of fourteen ploughs in Kent, in places
called Toccham [Ickham] and Perhamstede, with swine pasture in
various parts of the Andredeswald, etc. Witnessed by Iaenbeorht,
Archbishop, Queen Cynetryth, and bishops and others.  Dated in
the synod of Cclchyth, a.p. 785. Lafin. A copy of the gth century.

3. Grant from Comxuurr, King of Mercia, and Curnrep, King of
Kent, to Uulfhard, the priest, servant of the late Archbishop Aedel-
heard, of a parcel of land in Sucordhlincas [Swarling] or another parcel
at Ecgheannglond, in Kent, at his choice, paying 100 “sicli” of purest
gold and as many of silver. Witnessed by Unulfred, Archbishop elect,
and others. Dated at Aclaeh [Acle], in the year in which Archbishop
Aethilheard “migrabat ad caelestia regna " [a.D. 803]. Ladin

4. REcorp of the suit between Archbishop Uurrrep and the Abbess
CwoENTHRYVTH respecting lands at Hearge [Harrow], Herefrethinglond,
Wembalea [Wembley], and Geddincgum [Yeading], co. Middlesex, and
its final settlement at the Council of Clovesho held under Beornwulf,
King of Mercia, An. 825. Lafin. Written in 2 hand which was
used specially by Mercian scribes.
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See another copy in Cotton MS., Augustus I 38 (Farsimiles of
Auncient Chariers in the Britisk Museum, Part ii. 1876, no. 18 ; Haddan
and Stubbs' Councils, vol. iii., 1871, p. 596).

5. GrawnT, with the consent of Errrep, King of Wessex, and the
Witenagemot, from Archbishop ETHERED and the monastery of Christ
Church, Canterbury, to Liaba or Leafa, son of Birgwin, of land called ~
Gilding [Yalding, co. Kent}, for 25 [originally 20] mancuses of gold.
An addition, in a contemporary hand, at the end of the text of the
charter is as follows: “4 Leafa gebohte =t /E¥ere archiepiscopo and
2t his hiawum %e to Cristes Cirican hera® ¥is gewrit and %is land mi%
3y friadome %e hit har gefriad was to Cristes Cirican on ec erfe.”
Dated a.n, 873. Latin.

A contemporary copy written in the hand used by Wessex scribes.

The names of the witnesses, among whom are Asgelulf, King
of Wessex [06. 857], and Archbishop Ceolnoth [p5. 890] have
evidently been copied from other charters.

6. REcORD of a grant from ATHULF to his daughter ‘Ethelgyth of
land “zt p#m éasteran Hrisdn byrge,” within the boundaries thus
given :—

+ Bissynt pa land gemaero, /Erest of pam garan innan pa blacan hegcean ,
of pere hegcean nyper innan pone fulan bréc . of Bam fulan broce wip westan
randes msc. panon on pene ealdan dic wif westan pa herde wic,of pzre dfc
bt innan Wealdan hrige [Waldridge, co. Bucks] on Eadrices gemre . andlang
Eadrices gemzre pat innan Cynebellinga gem®re [Kimble]. andlang gememre
b=t on Icenhylte [Icknicld way]. andlang Icenhylte of pone ha¥enan byrgels.
banon on cynges strft . up andlang strzte on Welandes stéce [Wayland's Stoke ;
Stoke Mandeville {]. of pam stocce nyper andlang rah héges %t on heg leage ,
of Bzre leage nyper ¥zt eft on Bxne garan,

This record is issued by King Eadweard at the request of the
ealdorman ZEthelfrith, who had lost the original deed with his other
muniments by fire; which were again drawn up “in quantum eos
memoriter recordari potuisset.” Witnessed by King Eadweard;



